
Goodhue County Planning Commission
Government Center -  Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

Planning Advisory Commission

Virtual Meeting Notice:

Virtual Meeting Notice: The Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission will be 
conducting a meeting on June 15, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. Due to concerns surrounding the spread 
of COVID-19, the meeting and all public hearings will be conducted by telephone or other 
electronic means. 

The public may monitor the meeting from a remote site by logging into 

HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/240994293 or calling 1 866 899 4679
beginning at 5:50 PM or any time during the meeting. Access Code: 240-994-293

Public Comments: 

Interested persons must submit comments by phone, in writing, or via email by noon on 
Monday, June 15, 2020. To submit your comments please email them to 
samantha.pierret@co.goodhue.mn.us or mail them to the Land Use Management 

Department at 509 West 5th  Street, Red Wing, MN 55066. Comments received by this 
deadline will be read into the record during the public hearing for that item, including name 
and address.

Staff reports can be viewed online 5-days prior to the meeting. Agenda items may be subject to 
change. Please contact Land Use Management at (651)385-3104, or visit us on the web at 
WWW.CO.GOODHUE.MN.US for more information.

6:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

May 18, 2020 DRAFT Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_MAY2020_PAC_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request For Feedlot Expansion (Dicke)
Request for CUP, submitted by Dale Dicke (owner/operator), for expansion of an existing Feedlot above 
500 Animal Units and construction of an animal waste storage pit exceeding 500,000 gallons. Parcel 
33.004.1400. 20699 County 52 BLVD, Goodhue, MN 55027. The SE ¼ of Section 4 TWP 111 Range 15 

in Goodhue Township. A-1 Zoned District.  

PACPACKET_DICKE_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request For Commercial/Industrial Use Primarily Intended To Serve The Ag. 
Community

Request for CUP, submitted by Carl Fox (Applicant) and Aaron Witmer (Owner), to operate a milker 
equipment parts and equipment storage, repair and sales business in the A-3, Urban Fringe District. 
Parcel 47.030.1600. TBD HWY 58 BLVD, Zumbrota, MN 55992. Part of the E ½ of the NW ¼ of Section 

30 TWP 110 Range 15 in Zumbrota Township.  

PACPACKET_FOX_REDACTED.PDF

TABLED: Text Amendments To Articles 10 (Definitions), 11 (Performance Standards), 20 (Table Of Uses), 
25 (B1 Zoning District), 27 (B2 Zoning District), And 28 (Industrial Zoning District)

Consider proposed text amendments to Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance to allow “Exterior Storage 
Yards” as a permitted use in the B-1 (General Business District), B-2 (Highway Business), and Industrial 
Districts and to consider the use in the A-1 (Agriculture Protection), A-2 (General Agriculture), and A-3 
(Urban Fringe) Districts.  

PACPACKET_EXTERIORSTORAGEYARDS.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w
w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385-3104 w Fax: 651/385-3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/240994293
tel:+18668994679,,240994293
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/


Goodhue County Planning Commission
Government Center -  Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

Planning Advisory Commission

Virtual Meeting Notice:

Virtual Meeting Notice: The Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission will be 
conducting a meeting on June 15, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. Due to concerns surrounding the spread 
of COVID-19, the meeting and all public hearings will be conducted by telephone or other 
electronic means. 

The public may monitor the meeting from a remote site by logging into 

HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/240994293 or calling 1 866 899 4679
beginning at 5:50 PM or any time during the meeting. Access Code: 240-994-293

Public Comments: 

Interested persons must submit comments by phone, in writing, or via email by noon on 
Monday, June 15, 2020. To submit your comments please email them to 
samantha.pierret@co.goodhue.mn.us or mail them to the Land Use Management 

Department at 509 West 5th  Street, Red Wing, MN 55066. Comments received by this 
deadline will be read into the record during the public hearing for that item, including name 
and address.

Staff reports can be viewed online 5-days prior to the meeting. Agenda items may be subject to 
change. Please contact Land Use Management at (651)385-3104, or visit us on the web at 
WWW.CO.GOODHUE.MN.US for more information.

6:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

May 18, 2020 DRAFT Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_MAY2020_PAC_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request For Feedlot Expansion (Dicke)
Request for CUP, submitted by Dale Dicke (owner/operator), for expansion of an existing Feedlot above 
500 Animal Units and construction of an animal waste storage pit exceeding 500,000 gallons. Parcel 
33.004.1400. 20699 County 52 BLVD, Goodhue, MN 55027. The SE ¼ of Section 4 TWP 111 Range 15 

in Goodhue Township. A-1 Zoned District.  

PACPACKET_DICKE_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request For Commercial/Industrial Use Primarily Intended To Serve The Ag. 
Community

Request for CUP, submitted by Carl Fox (Applicant) and Aaron Witmer (Owner), to operate a milker 
equipment parts and equipment storage, repair and sales business in the A-3, Urban Fringe District. 
Parcel 47.030.1600. TBD HWY 58 BLVD, Zumbrota, MN 55992. Part of the E ½ of the NW ¼ of Section 

30 TWP 110 Range 15 in Zumbrota Township.  

PACPACKET_FOX_REDACTED.PDF

TABLED: Text Amendments To Articles 10 (Definitions), 11 (Performance Standards), 20 (Table Of Uses), 
25 (B1 Zoning District), 27 (B2 Zoning District), And 28 (Industrial Zoning District)

Consider proposed text amendments to Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance to allow “Exterior Storage 
Yards” as a permitted use in the B-1 (General Business District), B-2 (Highway Business), and Industrial 
Districts and to consider the use in the A-1 (Agriculture Protection), A-2 (General Agriculture), and A-3 
(Urban Fringe) Districts.  

PACPACKET_EXTERIORSTORAGEYARDS.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w
w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385-3104 w Fax: 651/385-3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/5cd8ab3e-9267-4723-b5b1-adcd7858e4c0


Page - 1 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 18, 2020 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 

The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 6:06 
PM by Chair Tom Gale at the Goodhue County Government Center, Basement IT Conference 
Room in Red Wing.  

Roll Call 

Commissioners Present virtually via GoToMeeting: Richard (Dick) Nystuen, Tom Gale, Barney 
Nesseth, Richard Miller (arrived 6:11 PM), Sarah Pettit, Marc Huneke (Arrived at 6:08 PM), 
Darwin Fox and Tom Drazkowski 
 
Commissioners Absent: Howard Stenerson 

Staff Present: Land Use Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Ryan Bechel, and Zoning 
Assistant Samantha Pierret  

1. Approval of Agenda 

1Motion by Commissioner Nesseth; seconded by Commissioner Drazkowski to approve the 
meeting agenda.  

Motion carried 6:0. 

2. Approval of Minutes 
2Motion by Commissioner Nesseth; seconded by Commissioner Fox to approve the previous 
month’s meeting minutes.  

Motion carried 7:0. 

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest 

There were no reported conflicts/disclosures of interest. 

4. Public Hearings 

PUBLIC HEARING: “DL BTF Addition” Preliminary/Final Plat Review 

Request submitted by Northern States Power Company (Applicant), High-Power Farms LLC 
(Owner), and Mon Cheval Training Center LLC (Owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat review of 
the proposed “DL BTF Addition” as part of a multi-party common property line adjustment 
request. Parcels 28.019.5901, 28.019.6001, 28.019.6300, and 28.019.6900. 31734 and 31924 
Willow Trail, Cannon Falls, MN 55009. Part of the W ½ of the SW ¼ of Sect 19 TWP 112 R17 in 
Cannon Falls Township. B2 and A3 Zoned District. 

Bechel presented the staff report and attachments. 

Bonnie O’Malley (Applicant Representative) was present virtually via GoToMeeting and stated 
that the plat was fairly simple and was being done to clear up boundary disputes between 
landowners. She noted that the legal descriptions and tax parcels would be cleaned up with 
this plat which was advantageous to the owners.  

Chair Gale opened the Public Hearing.  

No one spoke for or against the request.  
3After Chair Gale called three times for comments it was moved by Commissioner 
Miller and seconded by Commissioner Huneke to close the Public Hearing.  



Page - 2 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 18, 2020 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 

Motion carried 8:0 
4It was moved by Chair Gale and seconded by Commissioner Drazkowski for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• Adopt the staff report into the record; 
• Accept the application, testimony, exhibits and other evidence presented into the record; 

and 

Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by 
Northern States Power Company (Applicant), High-Power Farms LLC (Owner) and Mon Cheval 
Training Center LLC (Owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat review of the proposed “DL BTF 
Addition”.  

Motion carried 8:0.  

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Map Amendment (Rezone) – High-Power Farms 
LLC/Mon Cheval Training Center LLC 

Request submitted by Northern States Power Company (Applicant), High-Power Farms LLC 
(Owner), and Mon Cheval Training Center LLC (Owner) to rezone two “slivers” of property 
totaling less than 1-acre from A3 (Urban Fringe District) to B2 (Highway Business District) and 
one “sliver” of property totaling less than 1-acre from B2 to A3 in conjunction with a multi-party 
common property line adjustment request. Parcels 28.019.5901, 28.019.6001, 28.019.6300, and 
28.019.6900. 31734 and 31924 Willow Trail, Cannon Falls, MN 55009. Part of the W ½ of the 
SW ¼ of Sect 19 TWP 112 R17 in Cannon Falls Township. B2 and A3 Zoned District. 

Bechel presented the staff report and attachments. 

Chair Gale opened the Public Hearing 

No one spoke for or against the request.  
5After Chair Gale called three times for comments it was moved by Commissioner 
Huneke and seconded by Commissioner Nystuen to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
6It was moved by Chair Gale and seconded by Commissioner Miller to:  

• Adopt the staff report into the record; 
• Accept the application, testimony, exhibits and other evidence presented into the record; 

and 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the map amendment request 
submitted by Northern States Power Company (Applicant), High-Power Farms LLC (Owner) 
and Mon Cheval Training Center LLC (Owner) to rezone two “slivers” of property totaling less 
than 1-acre from A-3 (Urban Fringe District) to B-2 (Highway Business District) and one “sliver” 
of property totaling less than 1-acre from B2 to A3 as indicated on the proposed “DL BTF 
Addition” plat.  
 
Subject to the following condition: 
1.  The proposed “DL BTF Addition” plat shall be recorded prior to the zoning changes. 
 
Motion Carried 8:0 



Page - 3 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 18, 2020 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Text Amendments to Articles 10 (Definitions), 11 
(Performance Standards), 20 (Table of Uses), 22 (A2 Zoning District), 25 (B1 
Zoning District), 27 (B2 Zoning District) and 28 (Industrial Zoning District 

Request submitted by Kevin Simanski (Applicant), to consider proposed text amendments to 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance to allow “outdoor storage” as a permitted use in the B2 
(Highway Business) and A2 (General Agriculture) Districts. Land Use Management staff have 
prepared a definition and associated performance standards for “Exterior Storage Yards” for the 
Planning Commission to alternatively consider. 

Bechel presented the staff report and attachments.  

Hanni noted that the amendments submitted by the Simanskis for consideration must be 
decided on at this meeting while staff’s recommended language may be tabled at this meeting 
for further consideration.  

Commissioner Drazkowski questioned whether the provided Article 11 Section 33 was a new 
addition to the Ordinance.  

Bechel confirmed, stating that Article 11 Section 33 was prepared by staff for the Planning 
Commission’s consideration.  

Commissioner Miller noted that the use was not permitted in the A-1 and A-3 zoning districts 
in the provided packet. He questioned whether this was the direction the Commission wanted 
to go.  

Bechel stated that staff prepared this language for the Commission’s consideration. He noted 
that staff could see benefits to permitting/allowing the use in the agricultural zones however 
staff could also see challenges of allowing the use in these zones. He added that there are 
storage uses currently in existence in the agricultural zones. Bechel said that additional 
performance standards could be added or the use could only be allowed via 
Conditional/Interim Use Permit if the Commission preferred. Bechel clarified that current uses 
in the Business and Industrial Districts are just as impactful, if not more so than the proposed 
storage use which was the reason Exterior Storage Yards were proposed to be permitted in 
these districts and the Commercial Recreation District.  

Commissioner Miller questioned whether the exterior storage if allowed in agricultural 
districts, would need to be “ag-related storage”.  

Hanni stated that staff is looking to get away from classifying uses as “ag-related” because 
that is a vague term that puts staff in a bind when property owners propose specific uses on 
their land.  

Discussion continued regarding other commercial uses in the agricultural districts that are 
already in existence.  

Chair Gale commented on the oversight that would be needed for storage facilities in the 
agricultural zones, particularly if the business were being conducted far back from the public 
road. He stated that allowing these uses in zones close to highways would be a better idea.  

Discussion continued regarding businesses in the agricultural districts that serve the ag 
community that are already in existence and whether storage could continue on these sites.  

Chair Gale opened the Public Hearing.  

Pierret read comments received by staff via email from the public prior to the Planning 
Commission meeting.  



Page - 4 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 18, 2020 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 

Scott & Sue Reed (30971 Hay Creek Hills Drive, Red Wing comments received via email by 
Ryan Bechel May 14, 2020) The Reeds stated that the proposal by the Applicant appeared to be 
a way to create a junk salvage yard or contractors yard on their property. They noted that 
there would be impacts to the environment and property values if this use was allowed. They 
added that the term outdoor storage is vague and could be interpreted to include junk or 
hazardous items and that this needs to be identified as not allowed in the definition to prevent 
misunderstanding of a facility’s use.  

Marilyn Schilling (Hay Creek Township Clerk, comments received via email by Ryan Bechel 
May 18, 2020) Ms. Schilling stated that the Hay Creek Township Board of Supervisors 
discussed the proposed text amendment and noted that they are opposed to the wording 
proposed by the Applicant. She added that the Township Board is in agreement with staff’s 
proposed language.  

Brad Johnson (29126 HWY 58 BLVD, Red Wing comments received via email by Ryan Bechel 
May 18, 2020) Mr. Johnson stated he agreed with the recommendation to deny the Applicant’s 
proposed text amendment. He added that additional language should be added to staff’s 
proposal to restrict noise and traffic potentially created by exterior storage yards.  

Tom & Teresa Gadient (29407 HWY 58 BLVD, Red Wing comments received via email by 
Ryan Bechel May 18, 2020) The Gadients stated they agree with the recommendation to deny 
the Applicant’s proposed text amendment. They added that a more descriptive definition of 
items allowed to be stored in an exterior storage yard should be crafted to ensure non-
industrial items are stored on agricultural or business zoned parcels.  

 (Attachment 1) 

Commissioner Pettit relayed comments from Mary Veiseth (Minneola Town Board) who was 
concerned with the proposed definition of exterior storage and the fact that A2 zoned 
properties are typically in farmland areas in Minneola Township.  
7After Chair Gale asked three times for additional comments it was moved by 
Commissioner Nesseth and seconded by Commissioner Huneke to close the Public 
Hearing. 

Motion carried 8:0.  
8It was moved by Commissioner Miller and seconded by Commissioner Nesseth to: 

• Adopt the staff report into the record; 
• Accept the application, testimony, exhibits and other evidence presented into the 

record; and 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners DENY the Applicant’s text amendment 
request for “outdoor storage” in the A2 and B2 zoning districts to the extent it is undefined and 
does not provide adequate detail for the County to interpret the proposed use.  

Motion carried 8:0 

Commissioner Gale questioned types of vehicles that could be stored at an Exterior Storage 
Facility.  

Hanni stated that staff is aware there are existing storage yards in the County and clarified 
that staff can send additional information to the Commission before they made a decision on 
staff’s prepared Exterior Storage Yards use.  

Commissioner Pettit commented that she would like to have more time to review staff’s 



Page - 5 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 18, 2020 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 

proposal. She noted that the use fits into the Business zones and less into the agricultural zones.  

Commissioner Nesseth questioned how this use would affect small farmers storing a few 
campers etc. in existing sheds and how staff would administer these regulations. He 
questioned whether this language was going to be an enforcement opportunity.  

Hanni clarified that the new language would allow property owners to establish an exterior 
storage business with adherence to proposed performance standards. 

Commissioner Nesseth questioned whether outdoor storage was allowed in Business Districts.  

Bechel stated that outdoor storage is not an allowed as a primary use in any district. He added 
that storage is allowed if it is accessory to an already established business.  

Commissioner Nesseth questioned whether approving of staff’s language would allow outdoor 
storage with a permit.  

Bechel noted that staff’s recommendation is to permit exterior storage yards in Business, 
Industrial, and Commercial Recreational Districts.  

Commissioner Gale questioned whether an owner storing a few items for friends or family 
would be required to obtain a permit from the County.  

Bechel stated that storing items in accessory buildings have been allowed in the County in 
agricultural districts as a home business use.  

Commissioner Nesseth questioned what the effect would be if the Planning Commission did not 
adopt this language.  

Bechel stated that if the proposed language was not adopted, outdoor storage would not be 
allowed as a primary use in any district unless it is accessory to an established business.  

Hanni stated that the language is intended to allow business zoned property owners to have 
an exterior storage yard business but the intention was not to start enforcing this language on 
individual residential property owners in the County.  

Commissioner Miller clarified whether the proposed language was in reference only to 
exterior storage, not indoor storage. He commented that storing a few campers etc. on private 
property in an agricultural district may be okay if they were stored inside a building.  

Chair Gale noted that there are two types of uses being discussed. The first is someone who 
wants to start a business on a property and the primary business is storing items like boats, 
RVs, or campers. The other scenario is when a property owner stores a few items for friends 
and family as a favor, not as a business. He discussed different scenarios if exterior storage 
was allowed in agriculture districts. Chair Gale stated he would prefer to table the item until 
the next meeting.  

Commissioner Pettit questioned whether a public hearing would need to be held on the 
proposed staff language.  

Bechel clarified that the public hearing was already held earlier for the Simanski’s proposed 
amendment and staff’s proposed amendment therefore another hearing would not be required 
if the item were on a future agenda. He also noted that a public hearing will be required at the 
County Board meeting.  

Commissioner Nesseth stated that this proposal may have unintended consequences in the 
future and he could not support this amendment at this time. He added that he doesn’t see a 



Page - 6 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 18, 2020 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 

need for the amendment.  

Hanni added that the staff proposal was only to allow exterior storage in the business zones 
and to have a discussion on allowing it in the agricultural zones.  

Commissioner Nesseth questioned the zoning of the Simanski’s property.  

Bechel stated that the Simanski property is half B-2 and half A-2.  

Commissioner Nesseth proposed that the item be tabled for more discussion. He questioned 
whether there could be a specific number of items that can be stored on a property before they 
must register as an exterior storage yard.  

Bechel stated that staff currently cannot allow someone to store items on their property as a 
business because the ordinance does not allow that type of use.  

Commissioner Drazkowski questioned whether other counties had exterior storage as a non-
permitted use in agricultural districts.  

Bechel stated that other counties typically did not allow storage in their agricultural districts 
however staff recognized that this was an existing use in Goodhue County agricultural 
districts. He added that in the end staff decided to recommend to not permit storage in the 
agricultural districts due to impacts on traffic, roads and neighbors. He noted that staff was 
not against allowing the use in the agricultural districts, however staff wanted the 
Commission to discuss the proposal.  

Commissioner Drazkowski noted that there may be several property owners in agricultural 
districts who store items they do not own on their property. He didn’t want to see a regulation 
put in place that would have future consequences.  

Bechel re-iterated that staff currently does not have the option to allow exterior storage as a 
use in any zoning district. He stated that a separate set of rules, permit processes and scale 
may be necessary for exterior storage in the agricultural districts.  

Chair Gale stated he would like to see a specific number of items put into the language where 
property owners can have a few campers on their property without registering as a storage 
yard.  

Bechel noted that the proposed ordinance is not intended to regulate personal storage, the 
ordinance is proposed to allow exterior storage in Business and Industrial Districts and maybe 
where appropriate in agricultural districts.  
9It was moved by Commissioner Nystuen and seconded by Commissioner Fox to: 

TABLE staff’s recommended Ordinance revision for Exterior Storage Yards to allow 
staff time to research and prepare additional information on allowing storage in 
Agricultural Zoning Districts. No additional public hearing will be held.  

Motion carried 8:0 

Other-Discussion 

There was no additional discussion. 
10ADJOURN: Motion by Commissioner Huneke and seconded by Commissioner 
Fox to adjourn the Planning Commission Meeting at 7:06 PM.  



Page - 7 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

May 18, 2020 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 

Motion carried 8:0 

Respectfully Submitted,  

Samantha Pierret; Zoning Assistant  

                                                 
1 APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda.  

Motion carried 6:0. 
2 APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes.  

Motion carried 7:0. 
3 Motion to close the Public Hearing 
 Motion carried 8:0 
4 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for preliminary/final plat review 
 Motion carried 8:0 
5 Motion to close the Public Hearing 
 Motion carried 8:0  
6 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE  the request to rezone “slivers” of property  
 Motion carried 8:0 
7 Motion to close the Public Hearing 
 Motion carried 8:0 
8 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners DENY the proposed Text Amendments 
 Motion carried 8:0 
9 TABLE the proposed Text Amendments prepared by staff 
 Motion carried 8:0 
10 ADJOURN. Motion to adjourn the PAC meeting.  
 Motion carried 8:0 
 











 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 5 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: June 15, 2020 
Report date:  June 5, 2020 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request for Feedlot Expansion (Dicke) 
Request for CUP, submitted by Dale Dicke (owner/operator), for expansion of an existing Feedlot 
above 500 Animal Units and construction of an animal waste storage pit exceeding 500,000 gallons. 
  
Application Information: 
Applicant: Dale Dicke (owner/operator) 
Address of zoning request: 20699 County 52 BLVD, Goodhue, MN 55027 
Parcel(s): 33.004.1400 
Abbreviated Legal: The SE ¼ of Section 4 TWP 111 Range 15 in Goodhue Township 
Township Information: Goodhue Township confirmed acknowledgment of the Applicant’s proposal 
via email sent on May 22, 2020. The Applicant has completed the Township Building Permit 
approval form which has been signed by Goodhue Township without comments/conditions. 
Zoning District: A1 (Agriculture Protection District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary (excerpt of submitted materials; full submittal available 
from LUM Department upon request) 
Site Map(s) 
Feedlot Officer Odor OFFSET calculations (Kelsey Petit)  
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
The Applicants are requesting Conditional Use Permit (CUP) approval to expand an existing Feedlot 
operation from 244 animal units to 572.05 animal units. The proposal includes construction of a new 
slat barn with a below-grade storage pit with a proposed maximum storage capacity of 606,129 
gallons. The proposed barn and pit would be located on land currently occupied by open feeding 
pens and when finished would provide space for up to 300-head of beef cattle. The planned 
expansion will allow the family farming operation to increase labor and operational efficiencies as 
well as improve on-site manure management.  

The property is currently a registered Feedlot in good standing. The Goodhue County Zoning 
Ordinance (GCZO) requires CUP approval for all Feedlots exceeding 500 Animal Units in the A1 
District and any animal waste storage pits exceeding 500,000 gallons. The property does not 
currently operate under a Conditional Use Permit as there are less than 500 animal units on-site and 
the Applicant’s utilize a solid manure pack system for managing wastes that does not include liquid 
storage.    

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 
No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission specifies 
facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be injurious to the use and 
enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, will not 
substantially diminish and impair property values within the immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal 
and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the 
area, that adequate measures have been, or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage, and 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 5 

other necessary facilities, to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, 
fumes, dust, noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs 
and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 
 
Project Summary:  
Property Information: 
 The farm is located on a 160-acre parcel (approximate). Dale Dicke’s residence is located on the 

parcel.  

 The property and all adjacent properties are zoned A1. Surrounding land uses are primarily 
agricultural (feedlots and row-crop agriculture). There is low to medium residential density in 
the immediate vicinity with 6 homes within a half-mile of the site. 

 The barn would be accessed by existing driveways from County 52 BLVD (aggregate road) at the 
southern portion of the parcel. Emergency vehicle access appears adequate to service the 
property. 

 Existing parking and unloading space would be available for the new barn.  

Feedlot Facilities: 
 The Applicants are proposing to construct a 70-foot x 120-foot cattle confined feeding barn with a 

proposed 52-foot x 140-foot below-grade concrete manure pit. 

 The barn and manure storage areas have been designed by ProAg Engineering, a Minnesota 
licensed engineering firm. 

 There are 7 existing sheltered livestock areas (including calf hutches) as well as multiple open-air 
feeding pens. One existing cattle barn is planned to be removed after completion of the proposed 
barn (as noted on attached maps). Additional facilities include feed and grain storage silos, bags, 
and bins, and multiple machinery storage/repair buildings. 

Animal Units/Setbacks: 
 The Applicants are proposing to register an additional 300 head of Beef Feeder cattle resulting in 

a total of 572.05 Animal Units as shown below. Dairy cattle, calf, and chicken numbers have also 
been slightly changed from the last registration (2017) to reflect current operations. 

Animal Type A.U. Factor # of Animals Animal Units 

Dairy Cattle 

Heifer 0.7 20 14 

Calf 0.2 125 25 

Beef Cattle    

Slaughter Steer/Stock cow 1.0 200 200 

Feeder Cattle 0.7 330 231 

Cow and Calf Pair 1.2 85 102 

Chickens 

Layers 5lbs. and over – dry manure system .005 10 0.05 

Total Animal Units 572.05 

 Expansions on existing Feedlots are required to be setback at least 91% Odor Annoyance-Free 
Rating distance (as determined by the Odor OFFSET Evaluation Model) from existing dwellings. 
A 430-foot setback is required for the facility to meet a 91% Odor Annoyance-Free Rating.  

 The nearest dwelling (owned by Audrey Hadler) is located 1,640 feet southwest of the proposed 
Feedlot expansion. At that distance, a 98% Odor Annoyance-Free Rating is achieved.  

The Feedlot is over 2.5 miles the nearest city (Goodhue).  

 There are currently 8 dwellings located in section 04. As an A1 zoned section, a maximum of 4 
dwellings are allowed in the section. The sections east, south, and west of the site are also zoned 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 5 

A1 and have either met or exceeded their available dwelling density. The section north of the site 
is zoned A2 and has 4 dwellings where 12 are allowed (one per ¼ ¼). Future development in 
section 33 of Featherstone Township would be difficult due to topographic and accessibility 
challenges.   

 ProAg Engineering completed a desktop wetlands review and karst features inventory. No 
wetland features were noted within the project area and the nearest potential sinkhole is greater 
than 1,000 feet southwest of the site.   

 The proposed Feedlot is sited to comply with all other setback standards of the GCZO including 
property lines, wells, septic systems, Shoreland, Floodplains, sinkholes, and Blufflands. The site 
is not located within an abandoned quarry. 

Drainage/Landscaping: 
 The site has minor topographic relief with slopes ranging from 3-6% in the project area. The 

facility would be sited on a lower portion of the site from the existing dwelling and some barns. 
Drainage for the property generally flows north via a series of existing in-field grassed waterways 
before finally out-letting into Hay Creek approximately 1 mile north of the farm. 

 The plans call for a combination of silt fencing, bale check, and earthen dikes around the 
perimeter of the excavation to prevent stormwater erosion during the construction phase. A 
perimeter tile is proposed around the new barn that would be interconnected to an existing field 
tile drainage system to aid drainage around the structure and allow on-going monitoring of the 
manure pit. 

 An NPDES permit is not required for this project as it will create less than one acre of impervious 
area. A Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) has been prepared by the engineer to 
prevent erosion on site.  

Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District Technician/Water Planner Beau Kennedy 
was not available to review the submittal prior to print. Staff will provide an update with Mr. 
Kennedy’s comments at the PAC hearing. 

Nutrient/Waste Management: 
 Animal waste will be collected via a manure containment pit beneath the new barn until it can 

later be field-applied as fertilizer. The pits are subject to MPCA inspection throughout the 
construction process to ensure structural integrity and conformance with approved engineered 
plans. The proposed pit would hold up to 606,129 gallons and provide 385 days worth of on-site 
storage capacity allowing the operation greater flexibility in determining when to land apply 
manure. 

Manure Storage Area Status Type Length Width Depth Capacity (Gallons) 

New Slat Barn Proposed Concrete Pit 141.7’ 52.0’ 11’ 606,129 
 

 The manure pit has an “Operation, Inspection, and Maintenance Plan” which includes records 
retention and quarterly monitoring of liquid levels to ensure the pit is properly functioning. 

 A preliminary Nutrient Management Plan has been submitted for review to the Goodhue County 
Feedlot Officer. The Applicants plan to field apply manure via “knife injection” during the early 
fall. Existing “manure pack” wastes are field applied using a solids spreader followed by tillage 
incorporation. A final review and approval of the Applicants’ Nutrient Management Plan will be 
required before completion of the Feedlot Registration process. 

 An Animal Mortality Plan is currently in place at the facility. The Applicants utilize composting as 
the primary method of disposal of deceased animals. The earthen bottom compost pile would be 
approximately 40-feet x 50-feet and will be site off the northeast corner of the new barn. 

 The barn will be “total confinement” to reduce off-site odor impacts. Additional odor 
control/reduction measures include prompt cleanup of feed spills and prevention of manure 
buildup around gates and feeders. 

 It should be noted that any wastewater from showers, hand wash sink, bathrooms, or any other 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 5 

source of human sewage cannot be comingled and must be treated by a septic system permitted 
by Goodhue County Environmental Health. The existing dwelling is served by an individual 
septic system. 

There is an existing well on the property approximately 500 feet from the proposed facilities. 
Wells are subject to permit approval and inspection from the Goodhue County Environmental 
Health Department. 

County Feedlot Officer Comments: 
 Goodhue County Feedlot Office Kelsey Petit offered the following comments: 

“The Dicke’s will have enough land to apply the beef and dairy manure for this feedlot 
operation. They state in the manure management planner that they can apply on 489 acres and 
more if needed. The applicants are taking all protective measures to meet state and county 
requirements to provide sufficient protection of water resources.” 

Draft Findings of Fact: 
The following staff findings shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed during the PAC meeting 
and public hearing. 
 

1. The proposed Feedlot expansion and manure storage pit does not appear injurious to the use and 
enjoyment of properties in the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it 
substantially diminish and impair property values in the immediate vicinity. The use is located in 
an A1 (Agriculture Protection) zone which is intended to allow for large-scale agricultural 
operations. Large separation distances and low residential density in the vicinity buffer the 
Feedlot from existing non-compatible uses in the surrounding area. The use appears harmonious 
with the established uses in the vicinity which include primarily cropland and animal agriculture 
operations.  

2. The Feedlot expansion and liquid manure storage pit is not anticipated to impede the normal and 
orderly development or improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to 
the area. All dwellings not owned by the Applicant exceed the minimum setback standards 
required by ordinance. The expansion achieves a 98% Odor Annoyance Free Rating due to its 
configuration and distance from existing non-farm uses where 91% is the minimum allowed by 
ordinance. The proposal meets or exceeds all the other development standards of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and appears compatible with adjacent land uses. 

3. A review of the Applicant’s submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage, and other necessary facilities are available to accommodate the proposed use.  

4. The facility has existing means to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve 
the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking requirements.  

5. The submitted plans detail adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. The new barn and manure 
pit are “total confinement” and liquid manure is field applied via “knife injection” to minimize 
odor and fume impacts to surrounding landowners.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 5 of 5 

Staff recommendation is based on the review of the submitted application and project area prior to 
the public hearing. 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the CUP request, submitted by Dale 
Dicke (owner/operator) to establish a 572.05 Animal Unit Feedlot with an animal waste storage pit 
of up to 606,129 gallons. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. The Feedlot expansion shall be constructed according to submitted plans, specifications, and 
narrative unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the new barn; 

3. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 21 
(Agriculture Protection District) and Article 13 (Confined Feedlot Regulations); 

4. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations. 



















































 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 3 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: June 15, 2020 
Report date: June 5, 2020 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request for Commercial/Industrial Use Primarily Intended 
to Serve the Ag. Community 
Request for a Conditional Use Permit, submitted by Carl Fox (Applicant) and Aaron Witmer 
(Owner), to operate a milking equipment parts and equipment storage, repair and sales business in 
the A-3, Urban Fringe District. 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Carl Fox (Applicant) and Aaron Witmer (Owner)  
Address of zoning request: TBD HWY 58 BLVD, Zumbrota, MN 55992 
Parcel(s): 47.030.1600 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Part of the E ½ of the NW ¼ of Section 30 TWP 110 Range 15 in 
Zumbrota Township 
Township Information: Zumbrota Township sent an email to staff acknowledging the Applicants’ 
request.  
Zoning District: A-3 Urban Fringe District 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Summary:  
Carl Fox is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to establish a milking equipment parts and 
equipment storage, repair and sales business in an existing structure on property owned by Aaron 
Witmer in Zumbrota Township.  

All Commercial/Industrial uses primarily intended to serve the agriculture communities in Goodhue 
County are required to obtain a Conditional Use Permit.  

Project Summary: 
Property / Building Information: 
 The subject property is approximately 7.83 acres and is owned by Aaron Witmer. Mr. Witmer 

also owns an approximately 1.35 acre parcel (PID 72.120.0430) directly south of the proposed 
site in the City of Zumbrota.  

 The existing building to be rented by Mr. Fox is 40-feet by 60-feet (2400 square feet).  

 The property is bordered by A-3 zoned properties to the north, east and west; the City of 
Zumbrota is directly south of the property.  Adjacent land uses include low-density 
residential and agricultural uses including row crop agriculture in the A-3 districts and 
medium-density residential in the City limits.  

 No new structures will be constructed on the parcel for the proposed business use. 

 Solid waste disposal services will be provided by a local professional business. 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 3 

 A 4’ x 6’ sign is proposed to be installed along Highway 58. The proposed size meets Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance sign requirements for business/industrial uses intended to serve 
the ag. communities.  

 No additional exterior lighting is proposed for the business. There are existing lights on the 
building’s south and east sides.  

 Exterior storage is proposed on a pipe rack on the north side of the existing structure (see 
proposed site plan). The proposed size of the rack is 4’ wide by 20’ long by 8’ high. An existing 
building north of the structure provides screening of the area from vehicles southbound on 
Highway 58 and from any neighboring parcels to the north.  

 The Planning Commission should consider if additional screening of exterior storage is    
warranted. 

Business Information: 

 There are two existing structures on site. The Applicant proposes to rent only the south building 
for a milking equipment storage and repair business. The building would also house a small 
office and retail space. The building would also house a 24-feet by 28-feet (672 square feet) retail 
space and a 12-feet by 24-feet (288 square feet) office. 

 Deliveries will be loaded and off-loaded on site near the existing building. The Applicant 
noted that large products may be delivered to the site no more than two times per month.    

 Primary hours of operation are proposed to be year-round, Monday through Friday from 
8:00 AM to 5:00 PM.    

 The applicant proposes to have 5 employees. Employees will mostly work off-site performing 
repair work on milking equipment at farms.    

 No equipment creating excessive noise, odor or dust will be used for the business as most 
repair work would be conducted off-site. 

 No traffic beyond that which is reasonable for the local transportation network is anticipated. 

 The business would occasionally have customers come to the site to purchase items in the 
retail store.  

 Parcel access is located off of Highway 58 on the east side of the property.  Highway 58 is a 
MNDOT asphalt-surfaced roadway. MNDOT District 6 has been notified of the proposed 
conditional use permit and staff will update the Planning Commission with any comments 
received.  

The driveway crosses Mr. Witmer’s property in the City of Zumbrota to access the north parcel in 
Zumbrota Township. Mr. Witmer has signed a letter permitting access to the business over his 
1.35 acre parcel. The 7.83-acre parcel has adequate road frontage along Highway 58 if a new 
access is needed in the future. The Applicant would need to request access approval from 
MNDOT to establish a new access drive if necessary. The driveway will need to meet Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance standards for driving surface width of 10 feet.  

 No traffic beyond that which is reasonable for the local transportation network is anticipated. 
Adequate emergency vehicle access is available to service the facility.  

 The Zoning Administrator has calculated that a minimum of 5 off-street parking spaces are 
required. Upon completion of a gravel parking area, ample room will exist on the parcel to fulfill 
off-street parking and loading/unloading requirements.  

 Zumbrota Township has sent an email to staff acknowledging the proposed business, noting that 
their acknowledgement is not an approval or disapproval of the project. The City of Zumbrota 
has been contacted and staff will update the Planning Commission with any comments received 
from the city. 

 
Draft Findings of Fact: 
The following staff findings shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed during the PAC meeting 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 3 

and public hearing. 
 

1. The proposed business does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment of properties in the 
immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially diminish and impair 
property values in the immediate vicinity. The proposed business will be conducted inside an 
existing structure. A significant increase in traffic is not anticipated as business activities are 
mostly conducted off-site. 

2. The establishment of the proposed business is not anticipated to impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area. 
The use is proposed to meet all development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance 
and the majority of the business operations will be confined within the proposed structure. The 
use as proposed appears compatible with existing adjacent land uses. 

3. A review of the applicant’s submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage and other necessary facilities are available to accommodate the proposed use.  

4. The Applicant has provided a proposal to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space 
to serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking 
requirements.  

5. The business will be conducted primarily within the existing structure to prevent and control 
offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. 

Staff recommendation is based on the review of the submitted application and project area prior to 
the public hearing. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 
Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request from Carl Fox 
(Applicant) and Aaron Witmer (Owner) for a CUP to establish a business primarily serving the ag. 
community. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. Primary hours of operation shall be year-round, Monday through Friday, 8:00 AM to 5:00 
PM; 

3. On-street parking shall be prohibited; 

4. On-street loading or off-loading shall be prohibited;  

5. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

6. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to Article 23 
A-3, Urban Fringe District; and 

7. The Applicant should obtain a Building Permit approval from the Goodhue County Building 
Permits department prior to establishing the use. 



















 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 1 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: June 15, 2020 
Report date: June 5, 2020 
 
TABLED: Consider Text Amendments to Articles 10 (Definitions), 11 (Performance 
Standards), 20 (Table of Uses), 25 (B1 Zoning District), 27 (B2 Zoning District), and 28 
(Industrial Zoning District) 
Consider proposed text amendments to Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance to allow “Exterior 
Storage Yards” as a permitted use in the B-1 (General Business District), B-2 (Highway Business), 
and Industrial Districts and to consider the use in the A-1 (Agriculture Protection), (A-2 (General 
Agriculture) and A-3 (Urban Fringe) Districts. 
 
Attachments and links: 
LUM Staff proposed Exterior Storage Yards Definition and Performance Standards 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Summary:  
At the May 18, 2020 Planning Commission Meeting the Commission tabled consideration of staff’s 
proposed “Exterior Storage Yard” Zoning Ordinance text amendment. The discussion was tabled to 
allow the Planning Commission additional time to review staff’s proposed language as well as time 
for staff to provide additional standards for consideration of the use in the Agriculture Districts and 
additional time to review public comments. Staff’s proposed Exterior Storage Yard amendments 
were developed after extensively researching the adopted language in adjacent counties as well as 
zoning jurisdictions throughout the country.  

Staff has prepared additional information for the Planning Commission to consider for “Exterior 
Storage Yards” in Agriculture Districts.  

Staff Recommendations: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE Staff’s recommended proposed 
“Exterior Storage Yards” text amendments. 

 

 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance  Article 11  Amended December 7, 2018 

ARTICLE 10 WORD USAGE AND DEFINITIONS 

Option 1: 

EXTERIOR STORAGE YARDS.  An outdoor facility designed and used for the orderly storage of 
operable recreational vehicles, boats, vehicles, or similar items. 

Option 2: 

EXTERIOR STORAGE YARDS.  An outdoor facility designed and used for the orderly storage of 
10 or more operable recreational vehicles, boats, vehicles, or similar items. 

 
ARTICLE 11    PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

Section 33.    EXTERIOR STORAGE YARDS   
Subd. 1. Exterior Storage Yards shall comply with the following standards:  

A. The parcel must meet or exceed the minimum size standards for the applicable 
zone. 

B. The site shall not be located within Wetland, Floodplain, or Blufflands. 

C. All equipment, vehicles, and activities associated with Exterior Storage Yards shall 
be required to meet all setbacks for the applicable zone. 

D. Storage of hazardous wastes or materials is prohibited. 

E. Use of Exterior Storage Yards for equipment servicing or repair, retail sales, 
processing, or manufacturing is prohibited.  

F. Exterior Storage Yards shall be screened from view of any public street, residence, 
or adjoining Residential Districts (R, CS, MXH) with landscaping, berming, 
and/or fencing to a minimum 6 feet in height above original grade. 

G. All lighting shall be downward-projecting or shielded to prevent light from being 
directed off the premises. 

H. All areas for storage shall be surfaced with aggregate, asphalt, or similar material. 

I. A landscaping and drainage plan detailing adequate provisions for stormwater 
control and erosion prevention shall be provided. 

J. Daily hours of operation shall be limited to 7:00 AM to 9:00 PM. 

Subd. 2. Exterior Storage Yards within the A-1, A-2 or A-3 Districts shall comply with the following 
additional standards: 

 A.       Maximum Exterior Storage Yard area shall not exceed 2 acres.  

 B. No more than one Exterior Storage Yard shall be permitted per parcel. 

 C.         The routes and conditions of local transportation networks will be part of the review 
 process to determine if they are capable of supporting the proposed use without 
 appreciably diminishing traffic safety along primary access routes. When 
 appropriate, the applicant shall bear the costs of required dust mitigation measures. 

   



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance   Article 11  Amended December 7, 2018 

 

 
 
 
 
PERMITTED USES: Exterior Storage Yards shall be allowed as shown in the table below. 
 

 A-1 A-2 A-3 R-1 B-1 B-2 I CR MXH CS 

Exterior Storage Yards I I I NP P P P C/I NP NP 
 

KEY:     P = Permitted Use     C = Conditional Use Permit     I = Interim Use Permit     NP = Use not permitted in the district 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 




